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Memorandum 

Memorandum No: 23-114 

Date: September 18, 2023 

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice Mayor, and Commissioners 

� From: Greg Chavarria, City Manager GregLhavarna(Sepl9,202313:33EDT) 

Re: New River Crossing - Mooney Consulting Final Report 

In May 2023, the City of Fort Lauderdale procured the services of Mooney Consulting to 
further evaluate the New River passenger rail crossing alternatives. Dr. Michael A. 
Mooney, PhD, P.E. is the Bruce E. Grewcock Distinguished Chair Professor of 
Underground Construction & Tunneling and of Civil Engineering at the Colorado School 
of Mines. Dr. Mooney has extensive experience in teaching, research, and consulting 
focused on the planning, analysis, design, construction, monitoring, and information 
engineering of tunnels and underground infrastructure. 

The Mooney Consulting scope of work included the following tasks which were 
memorialized in the attached report. 

• Task One: Independent assessment of existing feasibility study findings with
consideration for advances in tunneling technologies and recent performance
achievements in tunnel construction.

• Task Two: Technical review of tunnel and single station aspects not considered in
feasibility studies, e.g., alternative construction methods, depth, cross section,
single bore vs. dual tunnels.

• Task Three: Comparison of bridge vs. tunnel life cycle cost factors and
environmental factors to consider, including related to design service life
differences, maintenance and rehabilitation, noise, surface disruption differences,
etc.

• Task Four: Other miscellaneous aspects regarding tunnel construction, e.g.,
geotechnical risk, words of wisdom, reference to other bridge vs. tunnel studies
and outcomes.






























